
 1 Select Board Agenda 

  August 12, 2019 

- PUBLIC MEETING - 

Rockport Select Board 

Monday, August 12, 2019 – 7:00 p.m.   

Geoffrey C. Parker Room 

Streamed at https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine 

 
 

AGENDA  
 

I. Call Meeting to Order 
Please either turn off your cell phones and other electronic devices or set them to mute 

while in this meeting room or the hallways.  If you need to take or make a phone call, 

please step outdoors. 

II. Public Hearing  
a. None this meeting 

III. Minutes, Meetings and Announcements  
a. Approval of the minutes of previous meetings:  

➢ Monday, July 8, 2019, meeting of the Select Board  

➢ Monday, July 22, 2019, meeting of the Select Board 

b. Announcements of upcoming Select Board meeting(s): 

➢ Regular Select Board meeting Monday, August 26, 2019, 7:00 p.m., 

Geoffrey C. Parker Community Meeting Room, Rockport Opera House, to be 

streamed at https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine 

➢ Regular Select Board meeting Monday, September 9, 2019, 7:00 p.m., 

Geoffrey C. Parker Community Meeting Room, Rockport Opera House, to be 

streamed at https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine 

c. Announcements of upcoming Select Board Workshop(s): 

➢ Monday, August 26, 2019, 5:30 p.m. Budget Issues Overview Workshop for 

the Town Manager. 

d. Announcement(s) and/or Training(s): 

➢ The Town Office will be closed on Monday, September 2, 2019 in 

observance of Labor Day. 

e. Committee Openings: 

Application for Committee Service can be found at the Town Office and on the 

Town Website: www.town.rockport.me.us  

NOTE: If a committee does not have any vacancies, it may still be possible to apply 

to join the committee as an alternate member. Alternate members can attend all 

meetings, participate in discussions, but may only vote in the absence of a regular 

https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine
https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine
https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine
http://www.town.rockport.me.us/


 2 Select Board Agenda 

  August 12, 2019 

member. If interested, please check with the town office to see if there are alternate 

member spots available for the committee of interest. 

➢ Board of Assessment Review – 1 vacant seat 

➢ Camden-Rockport Pathways Committee – 1 vacant seat 

➢ Cemetery Committee – 1 vacant seat 

➢ Conservation Commission Committee – 1 vacant seat 

➢ Investment Committee – 1 vacant seat 

➢ Planning Board – 1 vacant seat 

f. Agenda Changes 

g. Public Comment – public comment should be directed at issues not under 

discussion on this evening’s agenda.  Comment from the public will be welcome 

prior to each agenda item.  Further comment will be granted only by permission 

from the Board.  All public comment should be brief and to the point. 

V. Town Manager’s Report/Update  

VI. Consent Agenda  
a. Resignation Allen Mitchell, ZBA 

b. Resignation James Sady, Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee 

c. Approval of Scott Bickford as the Health Officer and William Najpauer as the 

Assistant Health Officer. 

d. Accept Donation from Ken McKinley 

e. Resignation Richard Remsen, Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee 

VII. Unfinished Business 

a. None this meeting 

VIII. New Business 

a. Committee Application(s):  

➢ Anna Remsen – Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee 

➢ Sally Cook – Library Building Committee 

➢ Nicholas Ruffin – Library Building Committee 

➢ Mark Van Baalen – Library Building Committee 

➢ Ted Skowronski – Planning Board  

➢ Sue Kauck – Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee 

➢ Lea Anne Dunton – Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee 



 3 Select Board Agenda 

  August 12, 2019 

➢ Cheryl Liechty – Pesticide Advisory Board 

b. Rockport Parks and Beautification Bylaws 

c. Discuss Memorandum of Understanding for Masonic Hall 

d. Approve Maine Municipal Association Voting Ballot 

e. Update on EMS and Possible Next Steps 

f. Update on Capital Improvement Projects and Potential Bond 

g. Discuss RES Committee Composition and Request for Qualifications 

IX. Wastewater Commissioners  

a. None this meeting 

X. Liaison Reports  

XI. Executive Session  
a. Discussion of contracts connected with the use of real or personal property 

pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C)  

XII. Adjournment 



1 Select Board Minutes 

July 8, 2019 

Rockport Select Board  

Meeting Minutes 

Monday, July 8, 2019 – 7:00 p.m.  

Rockport Opera House 

Present:  Chair Debra Hall, Vice-Chair Denise Kennedy-Munger, Douglas Cole, Mark Kelley, 

Jeffrey Hamilton, Linda Greenlaw, Acting Town Manager. 

I. Call Meeting to Order
Debra Hall, Chair called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

II. Public Hearing
a. None this meeting

III. Minutes, Meetings and Announcements
a. Approval of the minutes of previous meetings:

➢ None this meeting

b. Announcements of upcoming Select Board meeting(s):

➢ Regular Select Board meeting Monday, August 12, 2019, 7:00 p.m.,

Geoffrey C. Parker Community Meeting Room, Rockport Opera House, to be

streamed at https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine

c. Announcements of upcoming Select Board Workshop(s):

➢ Budget/Issues Overview Workshop for New Town Manager - Tentative

Monday, August 26, 2019, 5:30 p.m.

➢ Short-Term Rental — Select Board to discuss

d. Announcement(s) and/or Training(s):

➢ The Town Office will be closed on Tuesday, July 9, 2019 from 8:00 a.m. to

9:00 a.m. for Employee Safety Training.

➢ The Town Office will be closed on Tuesday, August 13, 2019 from 8:00 a.m.

to 9:00 a.m. for Employee Safety Training.

e. Committee Openings:

Application for Committee Service can be found at the Town Office and on the

Town Website: www.rockportmaine.gov

NOTE: If a committee does not have any vacancies, it may still be possible to apply

to join the committee as an alternate member. Alternate members can attend all

meetings, participate in discussions, but may only vote in the absence of a regular

member. If interested, please check with the town office to see if there are alternate

member spots available for the committee of interest.

https://livestream.com/Rockportmaine


2 Select Board Minutes 

July 8, 2019 

f. Agenda Changes

g. Public Comment – public comment should be directed at issues not under

discussion on this evening’s agenda.  Comment from the public will be welcome

prior to each agenda item.  Further comment will be granted only by permission

from the Board.  All public comment should be brief and to the point.

V. Town Manager’s Report/Update
Linda Greenlaw, Acting Town Manager went over her Manager’s Report. 

Ambulance Services – Jason Peasley, Fire Chief is documenting the response time.  Camden 

has started tracking this as well.  This report will be done in a couple of weeks.  Wyatt in the 

Town Office is helping Jason pull this report together. 

Rhino Services was the lowest bidder for the Town Office Sidewalk bid and will be awarded the 

Bid for $41,500.  This bid came under budget.  There will be $14,927 left over.  

Select Board Douglas Cole moved to authorize the Acting Town Manager to award the bid 

to Rhino Services.  Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 

OPPOSED.   

There was some discussion to do some maintenance/gardening at the Town Office.  Debra 

would like to see Linda Greenlaw, the Acting Town Manager spend some of the left-over funds 

to get the gardens spruced up and to look into local gardening centers to donate and put signs 

out who donated what. 

Megan is waiting to get quotes from AD Electric regarding the damage to streetlight.  Denise 

recommended we notify Home Depot.  Megan will email them. 

Doug discussed that the Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee would like to improve 

the signs on Route 90 & 1.  He believes it is a State right of way.   

Debra said there may be ways to control the signs that are issued at this intersection through the 

permitting process.  

VI. Consent Agenda
a. None this meeting

VII. Unfinished Business

a. None this meeting

VIII. New Business

a. Appointment of Committees

The Select Board decided at its last meeting to review the appointment of all committees 

comprehensively.  



 3 Select Board Minutes 

  July 8, 2019 

The Board reviewed a spreadsheet that shows the current committee membership, those 

requesting renewal and new applications received. 

Select Board Douglas Cole moved to combine the Parks Committee and the Rockport 

Beautification Committee, to be named the Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee. 

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

 

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to approve Lynda Clancy for another term on the 

Camden Rockport Pathways Committee for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 2022. 

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger seconded the motion. VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

 

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to approve Allen Mitchell and Steven Dailey for 

another term on the Capital Improvement Plan Committee for a 3-year term to expire 

June 30, 2022.  Select Board Douglas Cole seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 

OPPOSED.   

 

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger moved to approve Julie Clement and Helen Shaw 

for another term on the Cemetery Committee for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 2022. 

Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

 

Select Board Douglas Cole moved to approve Lora Laffan and Fred Ribeck for another 

term on the Conservation Commission Committee for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 

2022.  Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

 

Select Board Douglas Cole motioned to approve Meggan Dwyer to move from Alternate to 

Regular member on the Conservation Commission Committee with expiration date of June 

30, 2021. Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

 

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to approve Nancy Albertson and Ralph “Doc” 

Wallace as Alternates on the Harbor Committee for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 2022.  

Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion. VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

 

Select Board Douglas Cole moved to approve Scott Warren as Alternate on the Harbor 

Committee for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 2022.  Select Board Denise Kennedy-

Munger seconded the motion.  VOTE 3 FOR – 2 OPPOSED.  Hall, Cole, and Kennedy-

Munger For, Hamilton and Kelley Opposed 

 

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger moved to approve Laurence Novotney for another 

term on the Investment Committee for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 2022.  Select Board 

Douglas Cole seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

 

Discussed Library Building Committee.  There will be (5) members.  (3) Regular Members 

and (2) Select Board Members.  The committee will dissolve when the Library Building is 

complete.  Doug and Denise will be the Select Board members.  No action taken. 

 

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to approve Dave Jackson and William Kelley for 

another term on the Opera House Committee for a 1-year term to expire June 30, 2020.  

Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   



 4 Select Board Minutes 

  July 8, 2019 

 

Select Board Mark Kelley moved to approve Richard Remsen and Taylor Allen for 

another term on the Ordinance Review Committee for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 

2022.  Select Board Douglas Cole seconded them motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

 

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to appoint Robert Hall to the Ordinance Review 

Committee for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 2022.  Select Board Mark Kelley seconded 

the motion.  VOTE 4 FOR - 0 OPPOSED – 1 ABSTAINED.   DEBRA HALL ABSTAINED 

 

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger moved to approve Louis Laquaglia for another term 

on the Planning Board for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 2022.  Select Board Mark 

Kelley seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

 

Select Board Douglas Cole moved to appoint Haunani Wallace and Richard Lermond to 

the Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 

2022.  Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger seconded the motion.  VOTE 3 FOR – 2 

OPPOSED.  Hall, Cole, and Kennedy-Munger For, Hamilton and Kelley Opposed 

 

Select Board Douglas Cole moved to approve Terri Mackenzie and Kimberly Graffam for 

another term on the Zoning Board of Appeals for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 2022.  

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED 

 

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to appoint Thomas Kennedy, Geoffrey Parker, W. 

Kevin Olehnik, MD to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a 3-year term to expire June 30, 

2022.  Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion. VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED 

 

b. Review and Approve Opera House Fee Schedule 

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to approve the proposed revisions to the Opera 

House Fee schedule as recommended by the Opera House Committee, and Opera House 

Manager as amended to include balance due 14 days prior to event. Select Board Mark 

Kelley seconded the motion.  

c. Update on West Rockport Fire Station 

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to do phase 1 with 2A Architects study, not to exceed 

$5,000, and to have Acting Town Manager sign proposal. Select Board Debra Hall 

seconded the motion. VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED 

Select Board Douglas Cole moved for the money left in the infrastructure bond to be spent 

on Mt. Pleasant Street.  Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger seconded the motion. VOTE 

5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED 

d. Discuss Contract Renewals 

Contract renewals were discussed. 

e. Discuss and Approve Blue Aqua Library Building Lease 

This will be discussed in the Executive Session after this meeting. 

f. Discuss and Approve MCEDD Planning Services Agreement 



5 Select Board Minutes 

July 8, 2019 

Select Board Douglas Cole moved to accept MCEDD Planning Services Agreement and 

change the contract end date from April 18 to June 30, 2020.  Select Board Denise 

Kennedy-Munger seconded the motion.   VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

g. Discuss Town Representative Recommendations

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved that we table this discussion until the new Town 

Manager Bill Post is on board.  Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 

FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

h. Policy on Harbor Amplified Sound

This was discussed.  No action was taken. 

i. MCSWC Landfill Fee Change

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger moved to approve the fee increase requested by the 

Mid Coast Solid Waste Corporation approved at their June 26th, 2019 meeting. 

Specifically, the fee increase being for construction and demolition debris added to the 

facility landfill being increased from the current rate of $100 per ton of material to $140 

per ton of material. Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton seconded the motion.   VOTE 5 FOR - 0 

OPPOSED.   

j. Adopt 2019 Hazard Mitigation Plan

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger moved to adopt the 2019 Hazard Mitigation Plan for 

the Town of Rockport.  Select Board Douglas Cole seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 

OPPOSED.   

IX. Wastewater Commissioners

a. None this meeting

X. Liaison Reports

XI. Executive Session

a. Discussion of contracts connected with the use of real or personal property

pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C)

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger motioned to adjourn the meeting at 10:12 p.m. to go 

into executive session for the discussion of contracts connected with the use of real or 

personal property to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C).  Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the 

motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

Select Board Mark Kelley moved to exit the Executive Session at 10:42 p.m.  Select Board 

Douglas Cole seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   

XII. Adjournment

Select Board Douglas Cole moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:43 p.m.  Select Board Mark 

Kelley seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR - 0 OPPOSED.   



6 Select Board Minutes 

July 8, 2019 

Respectfully submitted, 

Diane Hamilton 

Executive Assistant as Recording Secretary 



1 Select Board Minutes 

July 22, 2019 

Rockport Select Board  

Meeting Minutes 

Monday, July 22, 2019 – 5:00 p.m. 

Rockport Opera House 

Present:  Chair Debra Hall, Vice-Chair Denise Kennedy-Munger, Douglas Cole, Mark Kelley, 

Jeffrey Hamilton, Linda Greenlaw, Acting Town Manager.  Department Heads; Megan Brackett, 

Finance Director, Jason Peasley, Fire Chief, Public and Press 

I. Call Meeting to Order
Debra Hall, Chair called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

II. New Business

a. Discuss and Approve New Compressor at the Opera House from the Reserve

Account

Linda said the existing system would be $3000-3500 to repair and it would cost

$6,000 for a new more friendly ozone refrigerant.

Sani Fogel spoke on behalf of the Opera House Committee and recommended that

we take $6,000 out of the reserve fund to replace the compressor.  She also said

that the committee is hoping to raise money through fundraising to help with

other repairs at the Opera House.

Mark asked if there were any bid requirements over $5,000.

Megan Brackett, Finance Director said yes, that the Bid policy states that anything

over $5,000 needs to go out to at least (3) three bidders.

Mark suggested that it go out for bid and we go by the policy.

Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to withdraw $6,000 from the reserve

account to replace the compressor as long as we abide by the bid policy by

getting 3 bids.  Select Board Douglas Cole seconded the motion.  VOTE 5

FOR – 0 OPPOSED.

We don’t want to buy a separate unit that will duplicate more costs at a later date.

Also, the unit seems to be working on and off.

b. Update on West Rockport Fire Station

Jason Peasley, Fire Chief has a concern with the lack of drivers on the Village

side of Rockport.  One of his senior drivers has been the number one call operator

and is resigning.  This is a significant impact on the Town.

There is no truck on this side of Town that fits in the West Rockport Fire Station.



 2 Select Board Minutes 

  July 22, 2019 

ISO requires the Town to obtain a truck at the West Rockport Fire Station. 

 

Jeff asked Jason if he would explain how the lack of drivers creates a change in 

the West Rockport Fire Station? 

 

Jason - in September we will have 1 driver on this side of Town. 

Firefighters would have to drive past the West Rockport Fire Station to the 

Rockport Fire Station to pick up a truck regardless of where the fire/accident is.   

 

The majority of our drivers live on the outside of Rockport village. 

 

Also, we need to keep in mind the implications of EMS services as well. 

 

Debra wants the Select Board to have this on their radar when the Board reviews 

the overall issue of a possible infrastructure bond for the November ballot. 

 

Megan spoke about the time frame and what needs to be done for the November 

Bond.  We would need to submit by September 12th.  The bond counsel said we 

could have an open town meeting in January. 

 

Doug asked how much the original plan was for? 

 

Jason said $130,000 to bump out the back wall in order to fit a new truck. 

 

Doug said with time constraints wouldn’t it just be easier to do this? 

 

Jason said no because the State owns 15’ of the front of the parking lot, so it is not 

a feasible idea to do a remodel for a truck that will not fit in the space at the 

present building. 

 

Jeff asked if we could get an easement?   

 

Jason said no, because the State will not approve it due to the intersection, and 

future plans they may have. 

 

Select Board Mark Kelley moved to enter into executive session at 5:25 p.m. for the 

Discussion of contracts connected with the use of real or personal property pursuant to 1 

M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C).  Select Board Douglas Cole seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 

FOR – 0 OPPOSED 

III. Executive Session  

a. Discussion of contracts connected with the use of real or personal property 

pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C)  

At 6:44 p.m. Select Board Mark Kelley moved to exit executive session. Select Board Denise 

Kennedy-Munger seconded the motion. VOTE 5 FOR – 0 OPPOSED 

At 6:44 p.m. Select Board Mark Kelley moved to exit as the Select Board meeting and go 



3 Select Board Minutes 

July 22, 2019 

into Session as Wastewater Commissioners, Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton seconded the 

motion. VOTE 5 FOR – 0 OPPOSED 

IV. Wastewater Commissioners

a. Two Easement Recordings

Mark asked why we are running piping to go across Route 1 to go on the other

side of the road.

Megan said because a typical design pump station is on the opposite side of the

road then the pipes, making it a safer and more accessible.  It also is more helpful

for future property owners.

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger moved to go into executive meeting at 6:50 p.m. for 

the discussion of contracts connected with the use of real or personal property pursuant to 

1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C).  Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion. VOTE 5 

FOR – 0 OPPOSED  

b. Discussion of contracts connected with the use of real or personal property

pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6)(C)

Select Board Mark Kelley moved to exit executive session at 7:07 p.m.  Select Board 

Douglas Cole seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR – 0 OPPOSED 

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger moved to approve the sewer easement between 

Phillip Johnson and the Town of Rockport for pump station #2, exhibit A, to be revised to 

reflect the terms of the agreement.  Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion.  VOTE 

5 FOR – 0 OPPOSED 

Select Board Denise Kennedy-Munger moved to approve the agreement with Phillip 

Johnson and the Town of Rockport pump station #2 with exhibit A revised and just 

approved exhibit B, the sewer easement.  Select Board Mark Kelley seconded the motion.  

VOTE 5 FOR – 0 OPPOSED 

At 7:12 p.m. Select Board Mark Kelley moved to exit as Wastewater Commissioners and go 

back into session as Select Board.  Select Board Douglas Cole seconded the motion.  VOTE 

5 FOR – 0 OPPOSED 

V. Adjournment
Select Board Jeffrey Hamilton moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:08 p.m.  Select Board 

Mark Kelley seconded the motion.  VOTE 5 FOR – 0 OPPOSED 

Respectfully submitted,

Diane Hamilton
Executive Assistant as Recording Secretary



Town of Rockport, Maine 

Town Manager’s Office 

Town Office  

101 Main Street 

Rockport, Maine 04856 

Telephone:  207-236-0806 x3 

Fax:             207-230-0112 

William S. Post, Town Manager 

Email: wpost@rockportmaine.gov 

Diane Hamilton, Executive Assistant and 

General Assistance Administrator 

Email:  dhamilton@rockportmaine.gov 

Town Manager’s Report & Update 

August 7, 2019 

Introduction 

In my first four days as Rockport’s Town Manager, I have met, collectively, with all of the 

Department Heads, and have also met individually with most of them to tour their facilities, meet 

some of their staff and hear about any issues that their departments may have. I also have met with 

Camden Town officials and accomplished the normal day-to-day work that accompanies the 

position. 

I intend this report to provide updates on important topics for the Board and the public and will 

provide this for every Select Board meeting.  

Wastewater Inspections 

Please see the attached memo from Finance Director Megan Brackett on this topic. I will point out 

that of the original 666 inspections that needed to be completed, there are only 6 properties left to be 

inspected, which is an incredible amount of work that has been accomplished in a relatively short 

amount of time. 

West Rockport Fire Station Land Transfer 

The deed descriptions have been finalized for these properties and the Town Attorney is now 

drafting the deeds to be signed and properly recorded. This should be wrapped up next week. 

Opera House Air Conditioner 

Per policy, I am waiting for the third estimate for the replacement of the condenser for the air 

conditioner at the Opera House that has failed. I expect to have that today (Wednesday Aug 7th) or 

Thursday August 8th. 

Traffic Light at Home Depot 

The truck that was holding the traffic light at the Home Depot intersection has been replaced with a 

temporary pole. It is expected that the new pole to replace the one damaged by the vehicle accident 

will take six months to acquire. The factory that makes these poles suffered a fire previously and the 

backlog of orders is lengthy. In the meantime, the temporary pole will work fine. 

mailto:wpost@rockportmaine.gov
mailto:dhamilton@rockportmaine.gov


MTCMA Certification 

The Maine Town, City and County Management Association (MTCMA) offers a Certified 

Municipal/County Manager program. The criteria for certification require active and direct 

participation in activities and trainings of at least 240 hours during a three-year period. Of the 240 

hours, managers seeking certification are required to complete a minimum of 80 hours of service to 

professional associations or intergovernmental services, a minimum of 80 hours in the development 

of general administrative and management skills including trainings on leadership, human resources, 

elected officials relations, legal, finance and budget and ethics, and a minimum of 8 hours as an 

educator to the public or peers and civic organizations.   

On August 1, 2019, I was notified that I have been re-certified by the MTCMA as a Certified 

Municipal/County Manager. There are less than 30 certified municipal/county managers in the state, 

and this allows the Town to receive a discount on the property and casualty insurance proved by the 

Maine Municipal Association. 

 

SHAPE Program 

On Monday, August 5th, Safety Committee Chair and Executive Assistant Diane Hamilton met with 

an inspector with the Maine Department of Labor’s SHAPE program to inspect the final Town 

facilities to determine if they followed the SHAPE requirements for employee safety. I am pleased to 

announce that the facilities passed easily, and the entire Town is now SHAPE compliant. This is a 

huge accomplishment and one that I know has been worked on by Diane, the Safety Committee and 

town staff for quite some time. This recognition also equates to a reduction in the Town’s property 

and casualty insurance. 

 

Select Board Agendas and By-Laws 

The Select Board by-laws dictate how the Select Board’s agenda is organized. After meeting with 

Chair Debra Hall, I would like to make some changes to the agenda that I think may make the 

agenda less cumbersome and the meetings more efficient. If the Board is willing, I can prepare a 

draft agenda document that can be discussed and edited. If the agenda format is changed, then a 

change to the by-laws would be needed. 

 

Job Descriptions 

I have begun to review all the Town job descriptions for possible updates which will then lead to a 

salary survey in future months. Reviewing and revising the job descriptions is a lengthy process and 

I do not have an estimate as to when it will be done. I will keep the Board updated.  

 

Dividend Payment 

The Town received a dividend payment from the Maine Municipal Association Risk Pool for good 

loss control in 2018. The amount of the payment received was $3,328. This is the first time in 

Megan’s tenure with the Town that Rockport has received this dividend. 
 

 

 



Town of Rockport, Maine 

Finance Department 
Town Office Building 

101 Main Street 

Rockport, Maine 04856 

Telephone:  207.230.0180 x6 

Megan A. Brackett, Finance Director 
mbrackett@town.rockport.me.us 

Fax:   207.706.4999 

Date:  August 5, 2019 

To: William S. Post, Town Manager 

RE: I/I Basement Studies 

First, I would like to thank Molli for all the work she has done to get these appointments scheduled and 

all notices sent out to the sewer users. We have made great strides in getting this done, and it would not 

have been possible without her. I would also like to thank the employees at Public Works who have 

completed the actual inspections, they have spent a lot of time crawling through dirt basements and crawl 

spaces, and we appreciate their work in getting them done.  

The Process 

An initial letter was sent on April 19th to all current sewer users and residents or businesses that had sewer 

lines running by their properties that could have connected if they choose to do so, we requested that they 

schedule their appointments by May 20th. On May 6th we sent a follow up letter to all individuals or 

businesses that we had no contact with, at this point we sent out 517 letters. On July 1st, a letter was sent 

certified mail to the 78 property owners that did not respond to the first two letters stating if the 

appointment wasn’t scheduled by August 1, on August 2, a fine of $100 a day would be assessed to their 

account. From July 26th to July 30th, the Police Department delivered letters to the 17 property owners that 

hadn’t made an appointment by that date and contacted all but 2 of the property owners. One of the 

properties is a home that is vacant and has been for years (417 Commercial St) and the other made an 

appointment without being served the notice. The officers were sent a delivery receipt for each property 

they visited so we have record of when they were served, by which officer and who signed for the paper. 

The Inspections 

When we started this process, we had a total of 666 inspections that needed to be completed. To date we 

have completed 660 of them, or 99% of them. Of the six inspections that are left to be completed we are 

in process of scheduling one of them, which can only be done on a Saturday afternoon, three of them we 

have received no response from, however when we had the Police Department deliver notices, all three 

locations received this notice. We also have two properties that we have agreed will not be inspected. One 

of the properties has been vacant for years and has been in foreclosure for several years. The other one of 

the two the personal representative to the estate is deceased so Molli tracked down the personal 

representatives of the personal representative and they live out of state and there is no way for us to get 

into the house, we don’t think that this property is causing any problems.  



Of the 660 inspections that have been completed, 618 had legal connections, we need to do dye testing on 

24 properties, of which 21 have been scheduled and we are still waiting to hear back from the other three. 

We found 10 violations, which Scott will be working on to get corrected.  

Also, through this process Molli was able to identify some properties that were not being charged debt 

service or usage fees. She found 17 properties that were not connected to the system but should be 

charged debt service. She has worked with Maine Water to ensure that going forward they are charged 

debt service. She was also able to determine that two business, which would have large usage amounts 

were not being charged usage or debt service fees, she has also worked with Maine Water to rectify this. 

Next Steps  

The dye tests are scheduled Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday of every week from July 15th to August 

15th. The appointments are scheduled at 9 AM, 11 AM, 1 PM, and 3 PM. Andy from Woodard & Curran 

is working with Public Works employees to complete the dye testing, as some places will require traffic 

control in order to reach the manhole.  

Other Items to Consider 

1. The sewer line that extends from Route 1 to Camden/Rockport High School is owned by the

school district. In the agreement that was arranged with the school that put the system in stated in

20 years the sewer line becomes the property of Town. Which means, any new connections to the

system the fees would go to the Town instead of the school district. Currently, the properties that

are located on this stretch of sewer line are not assessed a debt service fee because it is not owned

by the Town. This original agreement expires in September of 2020 which means that Sewer

Commissioners will need to decide as to whether those properties get assessed the debt service all

the other users are paying.

2. The Samoset property gets pumped directly to Rockland and the Samoset itself doesn’t pay any

debt service, which I understand is because they own the line. The condos on Village Way, which

is owned by the Samoset, also gets sent directly to Rockland and Molli cannot find when the

agreement went into effect with Rockland to have it directly sent there, instead of following the

same process the rest of the sewer system uses. Molli has contacted the City of Rockland to see if

they have a copy of the agreement, as well as contacted the Samoset resort multiple times, but she

has not received a response from the Samoset. From what Molli has been able to find, with the

help of Hannah, the condos are owned by individual people and built in or around 1999. If the

pump station was installed prior to 1999, which Molli believes to be true, based on conversations

with Steve Beveridge, who was the Public Works director when the pump station was installed,

and Brenda Richardson, who was the Town Clerk at the time, how does the agreement cover the

30 or so condos on that land, or does it?

Thank you, 

Megan Brackett 



Consent Agenda 

a. Resignation Allen Mitchell, ZBA

b. Resignation James Sady, Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee

c. Approval of Scott Bickford as the Health Officer and William Najpauer as the 
Assistant Health Officer.

d. Accept donation from Kenneth McKinley

e. Resignation Richard Remsen, Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee 

Manager’s Comments: Action item 

The three resignations are self-explanatory. 

The Health Officer and Assistant Health Officer positions were missed in the annual 

appointments and are 3-year terms. They have also been added to the list for future years so that 

they are not missed again. 

Former SB Chair McKinley is donating his stiped as SB Chair to the Town. 

Suggested Motion: 

I move to approve the consent Agenda as presented. 



From: Allen Mitchell
To: Diane Hamilton
Subject: Zoning Board of Appeals
Date: Thursday, July 4, 2019 9:52:24 AM

Diane, this is to advise that I will be stepping down as a member of the Zoning Board of Appeals,
effective immediately. My work schedule and other commitments will not allow sufficient time to
apply to issues, like the  Library Appeal coming up. I understand that there are applicants that have
applied for the seat, so let someone else fill it.
Furthermore, I have not been excited about the whole political direction the Library project has
taken, and best I remove my self from this next scenario to come.

Allen Mitchell

mailto:allenmar@mccormickbuilders.com
mailto:dhamilton@rockportmaine.gov


From: Chris Sady
To: Diane Hamilton
Subject: Re: Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee Organizational Meeting
Date: Monday, July 15, 2019 10:38:23 PM

hi Diane,  I apologize for being late in responding to this email.  I will not be attending  the 
meeting of  the  Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee tomorrow at the Richardson 
Room.  I do not want to be a member of this committee , please remove my name from this 
committee.  Thank you.     Jim Sady    
On Jul 11, 2019, at 4:10 PM, Diane Hamilton wrote:

x-msg://1227/sady333@roadrunner.com
x-msg://1227/dhamilton@rockportmaine.gov
x-msg://1227/richardremsen@me.com
x-msg://1227/GGL344@aol.com
x-msg://1227/sgsmith@sgsmitharchitects.com
x-msg://1227/crcmec@roadrunner.com




From: Douglas Cole
To: Diane Hamilton; Richard Remsen
Subject: Re: Rockport Beautification - Stepping Down
Date: Wednesday, August 7, 2019 9:02:08 AM

OK. Thanks and keep in touch.
Best regards
Doug

On Wed, Aug 7, 2019 at 09:00 Richard Remsen <richardremsen@me.com> wrote:
Doug,

This Summer has been so busy that I’m stepping down from Rockport’s Beautification
Committee.

All Best,

Richard Remsen

mailto:dspcole@gmail.com
mailto:dhamilton@rockportmaine.gov
mailto:richardremsen@me.com
mailto:richardremsen@me.com


New Business 

a. Committees Application(s):

Manager’s Comments: Action item 

Recommend appointment of new committee members and appointment of one regular Planning 

Board member that is currently an alternate on the Planning Board. The residents applying for 

positions on the Parks and Beautification Committee and Pesticide Advisory Board are new and 

would fill current vacancies. The Library Building Committee currently has two regular 

members and only one vacancy. There are three applications for membership on this committee 

so the Board should decide to: 

A) create and appoint alternates, or

B) increase the regular membership on the committee and appoint members, or

C) keep the regular membership at three and appoint one from those that have applied, or

D) some combinations of the above

Suggested Motions (Depending on what the Board decides for the Library Building 

Committee: 

• Move to approve Anna Remsen for the Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee

for a term to expire June 30, 2022.

• Move to approve Sally Cook for the Library Building Committee for a term to expire

June 30, 2022.

• Move to approve Nicholas Ruffin for the Library Building Committee for a term to

expire June 30, 2022.

• Move to approve Mark Van Baalen for the Library Building Committee for a term to

expire June 30, 2022.

• Move to approve Ted Skowronski for the Planning Board from an Alternate to a

Regular Member for a term to expire June 30, 2020.

• Move to approve Sue Kauck for the Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee for

a term to expire June 30, 2022.

• Move to approve Lea Anne Dunton for the Rockport Parks and Beautification

Committee for a term to expire June 30, 2022.

• Move to approve Cheryl Liechty for the Pesticide Advisory Board for a term to expire

June 30, 2022.



1 
 

TOWN OF ROCKPORT 

COMMITTEES/BOARDS 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Board of 

Assessment Review 

(5) Regular Members  

(3) Alternates 

(X) for quorum 

 1(RM), (3) 

ALT 

 Monthly 3rd Wed 

8:00 a.m. 

Richardson Room 

 

 Tom Laurent, Chair 2021(RM)     

 Reuben Brown 2021(RM)     

 William Freeman 2021(RM)     

 Robert Hall 2021(RM)     

 VACANCY      

Select Board 

Liaison 

NONE      

Staff Liaison Kerry Leichtman      

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Budget Committee ELECTED 

(9) Regular Members 

(6) for quorum 

 NONE    

 Thomas Murphy, Chair 2021(RM)     

 Helen Shaw, Vice-Chair 2021(RM)     

 Owen Casas 2021(RM)     

 Jerod Cronkite 2021(RM)     

 Stephanie Kumble 2020(RM)     

 Geoffrey Parker 2022(RM)     

 Jeffrey Charland 2022(RM)     

 Mark Kelley 2022(RM)     

 Eric Boucher 2022(RM)     

Select Board 

Liaison 

NONE      

  



2 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

C/R Pathways (5) Regular Members 

(3) Alternates 

(X) for quorum 

 (1) RM, (3) 

ALT 

 Monthly 1st Wed 

7:00 p.m. 

Camden/Rockport 

Swap each mth 

 

 Helen Shaw 2021(RM)     

 Lynda Clancy 2022(RM)     

 Owen Casas 2021(RM)     

 Margo Murphy 2021(RM)     

 VACANCY      

Select Board 

Liaison 

Jeffrey Hamilton      

Staff Liaison x      

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

CIP (5) Regular Members 

(3) Alternates 

(X) for quorum 

 (3) ALT    

 Allen Mitchell, Chair 2022(RM)     

 Steven Dailey 2022(RM)     

 Joyce Mohr 2021(RM)     

 Stephen Corson 2021(RM)     

 Jeffrey Charland 2021(RM)     

Select Board 

Liaison 

Jeffrey Hamilton & Mark 

Kelley 

     

Staff Liaison x      

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Cemetery 

Committee 

(10) Regular Members 

(3) Alternates 

(X) for quorum 

 (3) ALT    

 Linda Greenlaw, Chair      

 Brenda Richardson, Vice-Chair 2020(RM)     

 David Farley 2021(RM)     

 Polly Chatfield 2021(RM)     

 Vernon Hunter 2020(RM)     

 Carole Gartley 2020(RM)     

 Margaret Carleton 2021(RM)     



3 

Julie Clement 2022(RM) 

Helen Shaw 2022(RM) 

Select Board 

Liaison 

Denise Kennedy-Munger 

Staff Liaison x 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Conservation 

Commission 

(7) Regular Members

(3) Alternates

(4) for quorum

2021(RM) (1) RM, (3)

ALT

Kimberly Kimball, Chair 2020(RM) 

Ted Skowronski 2020(RM) 

Lora Laffan, Treasurer 2022(RM) 

Fred Ribeck, Vice-Chair 2022(RM) 

Bob Kennedy 2021(RM) 

Meggan Dwyer, Secretary 2021(RM) 

VACANCY 

Select Board 

Liaison 

Mark Kelley 

Staff Liaison x 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Harbor Committee (5) Regular Members

(3) Alternates

(3) for quorum

Monthly 3rd 

Thurs 

5:15 p.m. 

Richardson Room 

Sam Temple, Chair 2021(RM) 

Peter Ralston, Vice-Chair 2021(RM) 

Cheryl Liechty 2021(RM) 

Parker Hackett 2021(RM) 

Scott Whitman 2021(RM) 

Scott Warren 2022(ALT) 

Nancy Albertson 2022(ALT) 

Ralph,”Doc” Wallace 2022(ALT) 

Select Board 

Liaison 

Jeffrey Hamilton 

Staff Liaison x 



4 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Investment 

Committee 

(5) Regular Members

(3) Alternates

(X) for quorum

(1) RM, (3)

ALT

Mark Schwarzmann, Chair 2021(RM) 

William Freeman, Vice-Chair 2020(RM) 

Laurence Novotney 2022(RM) 

Jerod Cronkite 2021(RM) 

VACANCY 

Select Board 

Liaison 

Douglas Cole 

Staff Liaison x 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Library Building 

Committee 

(3)Regular Members

(X) Alternates

(2) Select Board

Dissolve when 

building is 

complete 

Ann Filley 2021(RM) 

Richard Anderson 2021(RM) 

Sally Cook 2022(RM) NEW 

Nicholas Ruffin 2022(RM or 

ALT) 

NEW 

Mark Van Baalen 2022(RM or 

ALT) 

NEW 

Douglas Cole Select Board 

Denise Kennedy-Munger Select Board 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Library 

Committee 

ELECTED 

(5) Regular Members

(X) for quorum

Monthly 3rd 

Thursday 10:30 

a.m. RR

Heaven Bartlett, Chair 2020(RM) 

Stephanie Kumble 2022(RM) 

Helen Shaw 2021(RM) 

Bill Chapman, Treasurer 2022(RM) 

Elizabeth Dailey, Secretary 2021(RM) 

SB Liaison Douglas Cole 

Staff Liaison x 



5 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Opera House 

Committee 

(5) Regular Members 

(3) Alternates 

(X) for quorum 

 (3)ALT    

 Alexandra Fogel, Chair 2021(RM)     

 Linda Greenlaw 2020(RM)     

 Chris Fasoldt 2020(RM)     

 Dave Jackson 2022(RM)    1 yr renewal 

 William Kelley 2022(RM)     1 yr renewal 

Select Board 

Liaison 

Denise Kennedy-Munger      

Staff Liaison x      

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

ORC (5) Regular Members 

(3) Alternates 

(1) ZBA Rep 

(2) PB Reps 

(X) quorum 

 (1)RM,(2)ALT 

(1)PB Rep 

 

   

 Richard Remsen, Chair 2022(RM)     

 Stephen Smith, Vice-Chair 2020(RM)     

 William Gartley 2020(RM)     

 Taylor Allen 2022(RM)     

 David Cockey – ZBA Rep 2021(ALT)     

 Robert Hall 2022(RM)     

Select Board 

Liaison 

Denise Kennedy-Munger      

Staff Liaison x      

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Pesticide Advisory 

Board 

      

 Cheryl Liechty 2022 (RM)  NEW   

Select Board 

Liaison 

Mark Kelley      

Staff Liaison x      

  



6 
 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Planning Board (7)Regular Members 

(3)Alternates 

(X) for quorum 

 (2)RM, 

(1)ALT 

 Monthly 4th Wed 

5:30 p.m.  

GCPR/Livestream 

 

 Joe Sternowski, Chair 2021(RM)     

 John Viehman, Vice-Chair 2021(RM)     

 Jim Ostheimer 2020(RM)     

 Louis Laquaglia 2022(RM)     

 Clark Doran 2020(RM)     

 Ted Skowronski 2020(ALT)    Chair recommends 

moving Ted from 

Alternate to Regular 

member 

 Tom Laurent 2021(ALT)     

 VACANCY      

 VACANCY      

Select Board 

Liaison 

Douglas Cole      

Staff Liaison x      

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Recreation 

Committee 

(5) Regular Members 

(3) Alternates 

(X) for quorum 

 (3) ALT  Monthly  

12:30 p.m. 

MRC 

 

 Suzanne Johndro, Chair 2022(RM)     

 Craig Wilson, Vice-Chair 2020(RM)     

 Barrett Brown  2022(RM)     

 Brian Fitzpatrick 2022(RM)     

 Chris Christie 2022(RM)     

Select Board 

Liaison 

Jeffrey Hamilton      

Staff Liaison x      

  



7 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

Rockport Parks 

and Beautification 

Committee 

(9) Regular Members 
(5) for quorum

Gretchen Leone 2021(RM) 

Maggie Timmermann 2021(RM) 

Richard Remsen 2021(RM) Resignation 8/7 

Steve Smith 2021(RM) 

Haunani Wallace, Chair 2022(RM) 

Richard Lermond 2022(RM) 

Anna Remsen 2022(RM) NEW 

Sue Kauck 2022(RM) NEW 

Lea Anne Dunton 2022(RM) NEW 

Select Board 

Liaison 

Douglas Cole & Mark Kelley 

Staff Liaison Abbie Leonard & Mike Young 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP EXPIRATION VACANCY N/R MEETINGS COMMENTS 

ZBA (7) Regular Members

(3) Alternates

(5) for quorum

(3) RM, (3)

ALT

Emily Lusher 2020(RM) 

David Cockey 2021(RM) 

Terri Mackenzie 2022(RM) 

Kimberly Graffam 2022(RM) 

Thomas Kennedy 2022(RM) 

Geoffrey Parker 2022(RM) 

W. Kevin Olehnik, M.D. 2022(RM) 

Select Board 

Liaison 

Denise Kennedy-Munger 

Staff Liaison x 































APPLICATION FOR COMMITTEE SERVICE 
Town of Rockport $ 101 Main Street $ Rockport, ME 04856

Name: _______________________________________ 

Home Address:______________________Work Address:_________________________ 
Mailing Address (if different):  ______________________________________________ 
Phone Number:  (Home) _____________________ (Work)_______________________ 

E-mail Address: __________________________________________________________

Committee you wish to serve on:_____________________________________________ 

Why do you want to serve on this committee? 

Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee? 

Land Use philosophy: (if applicable) 



  

 
APPLICATION FOR COMMITTEE SERVICE – continued 

 
 
Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished? 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
Are you interested in serving on other committees? 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
Interview comments: 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 
Appointment Date:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 



 

   
 

New Business 

b. Rockport Parks and Beautification Bylaws 

Manager’s Comments: Discussion and Action 

SB member Doug Cole has drafted these bylaws for review and discussion by the Board. After 

discussion, these can be approved by the Board, or if there are edits, these can be approved at a 

future meeting. 

 

Suggested Motion: 

I move to approve the bylaws for the Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

 
 

Bylaws of the Rockport Parks Beautification Committee  

of the Town of Rockport, Maine 
 

Mission Statement 

 

“Rockport Parks Beautification Committee” 

To foster in Town residents, businesses, and employees a spirit of ownership and caring for the 

Town’s landscaping, Parks and infrastructure. 

      

Section 1. Purpose and Scope 
 

The purpose of the Rockport Beautification Committee of the Town of Rockport is to act as a 

clearing house which will help coordinate the efforts of multiple Town departments, committees 

and Townspeople who are interested in the appearance of the Town.  This committee will then 

submit recommendations to the Select Board.  The committee will provide stewardship for the 

Town’s Eight (8) parks; (Mary Lea, Goodridge, Cramer, Memorial, Walker, Harbor, Kononen 

and Glen Cove, as well as other public areas with gardens and landscaping.  The committee will 

work close corporation with the director of public works, harbormaster and Rockport Garden 

Club. 

 

The purpose of these bylaws is to establish reasonable rules of procedures for committee 

meetings and to promote the fair, orderly and efficient conduct of the committee’s proceedings 

and affairs. 

 

Section 2. Membership 
 

The Committee shall consist of nine (9) members.  A member of the committee shall serve for a 

term of three years and may be reappointed by the Select Board. Terms shall be staggered to 

provide for orderly transitions.  If a member fails, without being excused by the Chair, to attend 

three meetings over any twelvemonth period, that person must resign, and the Chair will notify 

the Town Manager of a vacancy on the committee.  Every effort shall be made to include a 

variety of representatives from among the different constituents; including Conservation 

Committee, Capital Improvement Committee and Legacy Rockport.  The town manager, the 

director of public works, and the harbormaster shall be ex officer members.  There shall be at 

least (1) liaison from the Select Board.   

 



2 

 

Section 3. Officers; Duties 
 

Officers of the committee shall consist of a Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary to be chosen at 

the organizational meeting in July of each year by and from among committee members.  

The Chair shall preside at all meetings; however, in the absence of the Chair the Vice-Chair 

shall serve.  The recording Secretary shall maintain a permanent record of all committee 

meetings and all correspondence of the committee, which shall be a public record.  This 

record shall be submitted to the select board in its monthly meeting agenda. The Chair shall 

set the agenda. 

 

Section 4. Meetings 
 

Meetings shall be held each month or as otherwise necessary.  Meetings may be called at the 

discretion of the Chair or Town Manager, or upon the request of most of the committee.  Any 

meeting called shall be done in a manner that provides proper notice to each member and to 

the public.  A quorum (the minimum number of members that must be present to make the 

proceedings of the meeting valid) will be attained with five (5) members present.  

 

Section 5. Participation, Voting and Decisions 
 

Any action of the Committee shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of those at a 

quorum meeting.  No member may participate or vote in any matter in which the member has 

a conflict of interest or other disqualification as defined by law.  Any question of whether a 

member has such a conflict of interest or other disqualification shall be decided by majority 

vote of the remaining members. 

 

Members may participate in a meeting by electronic means but not vote or be considered part 

of the quorum. 

 

All final decisions shall be in writing and shall become a part of the committee’s permanent 

record. 

 

Section 7. Conflict with Laws 
 

Any conflict or inconsistency between these bylaws and any applicable law shall be resolved 

in favor of the law. 

 

Section 8. Waivers; Amendments 
 

These bylaws, or any provision thereof, may be waived on any occasion by majority vote of 

the Committee. These bylaws may be amended at any time in writing by majority vote of the 

Committee after notice on the proposed amendment. 

 

 



3 

 

Approved by the Rockport Beautification Committee on September 25, 2018 

Adopted by the Select Board on October 23, 2018 

Approved by the Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee on July 17, 2019 

Approved by the Select Board on August 12, 2019 



 

   
 

New Business 

c. Discuss Memorandum of Understanding for Masonic Hall 

Manager’s Comments: Action item 

Staff is recommending that the SB enter a memorandum of understanding to be able to use the 

Masonic Hall on Main Street as an emergency shelter. A shelter is identified in the Emergency 

Operations Plan. The Fire Chief, Chair of Safety Committee and County EMA staff have toured 

the Masonic Hall and agree that it would be a good location and has recently had a generator 

installed. There would be a cost to the Town should the building be used as an emergency 

shelter, but the cost would be reimbursed if the state and federal governments declared an 

emergency. 

 

 

Suggested Motion:  

 

If the Board is comfortable with the MOU: 

 

I move the Board approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the Trustees of the 

Charity Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge (Rockport Masonic Center)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 June 10, 2019 
 

Memorandum of Understanding 1 

Between the Town of Rockport, Maine, 2 

and 3 

The Trustees of the Charity Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge 4 

Purpose 5 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to affirm a spirit of 6 

cooperation between the Town of Rockport (hereafter referred to as the Town) and The 7 

Trustees of the Charity Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge (hereafter referred to as Rockport 8 

Masonic Center) in order that both may render maximum effective support and service 9 

in preparation for, response to, or recovery from a man-made or natural emergency or 10 

disaster.  Through this agreement, both parties agree to strengthen their partnership in 11 

the best interests of the citizens of the Town of Rockport, Knox County, and the State of 12 

Maine.  13 

Definition of Rockport Masonic Center 14 

The Rockport Masonic Center, located at 361 Main Street in the Town of Rockport is 15 

owned by The Trustees of the Charity Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge which is a corporation 16 

under the laws of the State of Maine having been chartered as a corporation on June 17 

5, 1909.  The Rockport Masonic Center houses two Masonic organizations: Federal 18 

Lodge #6, A.F.&A.M. and Keystone Royal Arch Chapter, York Rite, which pay nominal 19 

rent for the use of the building. 20 

General 21 

Upon signature of this MOU by both parties, the Rockport Masonic Center agrees, within 22 

its capabilities, during any emergency or declared disaster, and when requested by 23 

proper authorities of the Town, to provide support and services to the Town as listed in 24 

this MOU. 25 

Definition of Disaster 26 

In accordance with Title 37-B, Maine Revised Statutes (M.R.S.), “Disaster” means, “ the 27 

occurrence or imminent threat of widespread or severe damage, injury or loss of life or 28 

property resulting from any natural or man-made cause, including, but not limited to, 29 

fire, flood, earthquake, wind, storm, wave action, oil spill or other water contamination 30 

requiring emergency action to avert danger or damage, epidemic, extreme public 31 

health emergency pursuant to Title 22 (M.R.S.) §802, air contamination, blight, drought, 32 



Memorandum of Understanding between the Town of Rockport and 

the Trustees of the Charity Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge (a.k.a., Rockport Masonic Center) 

 

Page 2 of 5 

 

critical material shortage, infestation, explosion, riot or hostile military or paramilitary 1 

action.” 2 

Relationship to State Statutes 3 

M.R.S. Title 37-B §781, §782, §783, §784, are the applicable State statutes which direct 4 

municipal emergency management activities and allow municipalities to enter into 5 

mutual aid agreements to assist the municipality in providing for those activities. 6 

Severability 7 

Any provision in this MOU that is inconsistent with State of Maine statutes or County rules, 8 

regulations, and policy shall render it null and void.  The remainder of the MOU remains 9 

in effect. 10 

Methods of Cooperation 11 

In order that the resources of the Town and the Rockport Masonic Center may be 12 

coordinated and used to the fullest advantage in rendering disaster relief or 13 

emergency assistance, both parties have agreed to the following: 14 

The Town will: 15 

1. Designate the Rockport Masonic Center as the Town’s Warming/Cooling Center 16 

to be used by the citizens of Rockport during long-term power outages or times 17 

when cooling relief is required. 18 

2. Shall adopt a policy or include within an emergency management policy 19 

provisions under which the use of the Rockport Masonic Center is defined and 20 

how utilization shall be executed. 21 

3. Ensure the Town’s liability insurance references the use of the Rockport Masonic 22 

Center in the event of an disaster or emergency and provides that Federal 23 

Lodge #6, A.F.&A.M., the Trustees of the Charity Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge (a.k.a., 24 

the Rockport Masonic Center), and the Grand Lodge of Maine the same level of 25 

insurance as other town employees 26 

4. Provide the Rockport Masonic Center with municipal officials’ contact 27 

information and update this information as needed. 28 

5. Upon determination of a local disaster or emergency, execute the necessary 29 

elements of this MOU with the Rockport Masonic Center and request and/or 30 

coordinate support from the Rockport Masonic Center. 31 

6. Inform the citizens of Rockport that the Rockport Masonic Center is available for 32 

their use whenever this MOU is implemented in support of a disaster or an 33 

emergency. 34 



Memorandum of Understanding between the Town of Rockport and 

the Trustees of the Charity Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge (a.k.a., Rockport Masonic Center) 

 

Page 3 of 5 

 

7. Coordinate resources (maps, radios, etc.) that could be made available to the 1 

Rockport Masonic Center to facilitate its mission when supporting a disaster or an 2 

emergency. Knox County Emergency Management Center can provide radio 3 

support when requested; the distribution of maps and other materials will be 4 

determined by the Town on a case-by-case basis. 5 

8. Invite the Rockport Masonic Center to meetings, briefings, training and exercise 6 

opportunities, and other related activities that contribute to the Rockport 7 

Masonic Center’s preparation and response to emergencies and disasters and, 8 

in turn, enhance the preparedness of the town, that may impact or have 9 

impacted the Town.  Attendance at such events shall be voluntary on the part of 10 

the Rockport Masonic Center. 11 

9. Shall when presented with operating receipts for the warming/cooling center 12 

make payment to the Rockport Masonic Center in order to maintain and run the 13 

center.  Such reimbursement costs will typically be covered by Federal, State 14 

and Knox County emergency funds when requested by the Town.  Payment will 15 

be either at the standard day use rate or by actual costs. 16 

The Rockport Masonic Center will: 17 

1. Offer its facilities for use by the citizens of Rockport in response to any local 18 

disaster or emergency which results in a long-term power outages or times when 19 

cooling relief is required. 20 

2. Provide the Town with the Rockport Masonic Center points-of-contact and 21 

telephone numbers, and update this information as needed. 22 

3. Provide support and services, in accordance with this MOU and within the 23 

Rockport Masonic Center’s capabilities, based on needs assessed by and at the 24 

direction of the Incident Commander, local EMA Director, or the Town Manager. 25 

4. Provide support and services including, but not limited to: a location for citizens 26 

to get warm, receive a free hot meal and drink, draw water for their use at 27 

home, and charge their portable electronic devises.  Additional support and 28 

services required by the Incident Manager or the Town may be negotiated at 29 

the time of the incident. 30 

5. Ensure all Rockport Masonic Center liability insurance policies are current and 31 

name the Town of Rockport as an additional insured.  32 

6. Be responsible for documenting any expenses related to support provided to the 33 

Town and present any expenses to the Town of Rockport for payment.   34 

7. When appropriate, provide all necessary documentation to assist the Town in 35 

preparing documents required by the Town in applying for Federal disaster 36 

assistance. 37 

8. During periods where an emergency is not invoked, the Rockport Masonic 38 

Center will be responsible for the periodic operating costs such as LP to run the 39 

weekly or monthly startup and run costs. 40 



Memorandum of Understanding between the Town of Rockport and 

the Trustees of the Charity Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge (a.k.a., Rockport Masonic Center) 

 

Page 4 of 5 

 

Payment 1 

The Rockport Masonic Center agrees to offer its support as a Warming/Cooling Center 2 

at no cost to the Town, except the Town agrees to apply for and, if awarded, assist the 3 

Rockport Masonic Center with Emergency Management Grant Program funds, if such 4 

funds are available, to support the warming center’s operations during said disaster or 5 

emergency.   6 

When the use of the Rockport Masonic Center is activated, a Day Use Rate will apply.  7 

Initially, the Day Use Rate will be one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00). 8 

Also, the Town will reimburse the Rockport Masonic Center for the annual maintenance 9 

cost of maintaining the generator, currently estimated to be between one hundred 10 

twenty-five dollars ($125.00) and one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) beginning in the 11 

calendar year 2021. 12 

Protections when providing services if designated as Emergency 13 

Management Forces 14 

Under certain circumstances, the Director of the Maine Emergency Management 15 

Agency, may designate responders from the Rockport Masonic Center as Emergency 16 

Management Forces pursuant to M.R.S. Title 37-B, Chapter 13, §784-A.  Under these 17 

circumstances, Emergency Management Forces are provided certain immunities and 18 

other protections as may be provided by existing statutes.  If the members of the bodies 19 

that are tenants in the Rockport Masonic Center are supporting the Town, the Town will 20 

request, through the Knox County EMA, that members be identified as Emergency 21 

Response Forces.  22 

At the request of the town, the Rockport Masonic Center will provide between six (6) to 23 

eight (8) names of their members to become pre-credentialed. 24 

Furthermore, these personnel should be added to the town’s policy to be covered for 25 

Worker’s Compensation and Liability during declared disasters when the Rockport 26 

Masonic Center is in operation. 27 

Periodic Review 28 

The Town and the Rockport Masonic Center will review and update this MOU 29 

periodically on or around the anniversary date of this agreement.  As a minimum, such 30 

review will include the contact information for the municipal officials, the points-of-31 

contact information for members of the Rockport Masonic Center, the members of the 32 

Rockport Masonic Center to be pre-credentialed, and the Day Use Rate. 33 



Memorandum of Understanding between the Town of Rockport and 

the Trustees of the Charity Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge (a.k.a., Rockport Masonic Center) 

 

Page 5 of 5 

 

Terms of the Memorandum of Understanding 1 

This MOU will take effect upon the date it is signed by representatives of both 2 

organizations and remain in effect until suspended or terminated.  Either party may 3 

terminate this agreement with thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. 4 

 5 

 6 

    7 

Signature, Town Manager of the Town of Rockport  Date 8 

    9 

Signature, President of the Trustees of the Charity  Date 10 

Fund of St. Paul’s Lodge 11 



 

   
 

New Business 

d. Approve Maine Municipal Association Voting Ballot 

 

Manager’s Comments: Action item  

The ballot for the Vice-President position and three Executive Committee positions for the 

Maine Municipal Association is recommended by the MMA’s Nominating Committee for 

approval. The Manager knows the vice-president candidate and two of the three candidates for 

the executive committee. The Manager does not know the Hampden Mayor candidate. 

 

Suggested Motion:  

 

I move to approve the Maine Municipal Voting Ballot as presented 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















 

   
 

New Business 

e. Update on EMS and Possible Next Steps 

Manager’s Comments: Discussion 

The Chair, Vice-Chair and Manager met with Camden Officials including their Chair and Vice-

Chair and Manager to review the Camden Workshop on EMS held on July 30th in Camden and to 

discuss next steps. It was recommended at this meeting that the next steps include: 

1) The Manager will review the Town’s current contract with Northeast Mobile Health 

Services (NEMHS) and determine if the contractor is meeting the performance standards 

and associated clauses in the contract and if not, compile a list of issues. 

2) Determine, after discussions with Fire Chiefs, other public safety personnel and SB 

members, what level of service is preferred from EMS/Rescue/Ambulance services for 

Rockport. 

3) Ask for a proposed contract from NEMHS for the new service-level expectation. 

4) Develop a model and costs associated with the new service-level expectation from other 

providers. 

 

Suggested Motion:  

None needed at this time. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

   
 

New Business 

f. Update on Capital Improvement Projects and Potential Bond 

Manager’s Comments: Discussion 

Please see the memo include in the SB materials from Finance Director Megan Brackett that 

explains the capital projects as recommended by the Capital Improvement Committee. I agree 

with all these projects and the need for funding. However, with the current discussion about 

EMS services, it makes sense to wait to ask voters for an infrastructure bond until the Board 

works through and decides on a direction for EMS services. As you know, one of the options 

may be to locate an ambulance at the West Rockport Fire Station which would have an impact 

on the design and cost of the facility. My recommendation is that we wait to ask the voters for an 

infrastructure bond because of the uncertainty around the West Rockport Fire Station.  

 

Suggested Motion:  

 

None needed at this time 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

Town of Rockport, Maine 
 

 

Finance Department 
Town Office Building 

101 Main Street 

Rockport, Maine 04856 

 

Telephone:  207.230.0180 x6 
 

 

Megan A. Brackett, Finance Director 
mbrackett@rockportmaine.gov 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fax:              207.706.4999 
 

 
Date:  August 5, 2019 

 

To:  William S. Post, Town Manager 

 

CC:  Rockport Select Board 

  

RE: Capital Improvement Projects – Project List from CIP Committee 

 

The Capital Improvement Committee last met on May 22nd, 2019, at this meeting they developed their 

recommended list of projects for the proposed November 2019 Infrastructure bond article. Below is the 

list of projects that they settled on. 

1. Town Pier      $162,000 

2. Public Safety Building Paving   $  31,000 

3. Town Office Building Paving   $  31,000 

4. Harbor Paving     $  53,000 

5. Public Works Exhaust System   $  30,000 

6. Public Safety Building Exhaust System  $  30,000 

7. Town Office Vault Suppression System  $  15,000 

8. Park Street (Meadow Street to Brandy Brook) $  63,400 

9. Park Street (White Tail to Route 90)   $  90,280 

10. Old Rockland Street (Rockville to Route 17 East) $175,000 

11. South Street (Rockville to Beech Hill)  $101,180 

12. Beech Hill to South Street    $202,800 

13. Gurney Street     $102,035 

14. Mill Street      $199,215 

15. Camden Street     $  96,953 

TOTAL               $1,382,863 

 

Since the Capital Improvement Committee met last there has been some discussion about the possibility 

of pushing this timeline back some to account for the need for a new West Rockport Fire Station. The 

very preliminary cost estimates for the new station would be about 1.3 million dollars. The need for a new 

station has not been something that abruptly happened. The Fire Chief has risen concerns over the past 

few years that the majority of his firefighters live on the West Rockport side of Town and that the drivers 

that live on the Public Safety Building side of Town are nearing retirement age, which limits the number 

of drivers in that area down to two. The current station in West Rockport, can only house one of the Town 

owned fire trucks because of the limited space in the current station. This means that if there is a fire in 

West Rockport, or anywhere on that side of Town, firefighters will need to drive to the Public Safety 



Building, get in a truck and head back the way they just came, this can add significant response times to 

calls. Also, with the unknown of the ambulance service contract, we may need to be looking for a place to 

house an ambulance, which the current station in West Rockport is not designed to house the ambulance 

or the 24-hour staff that an ambulance service would require. The third item impacting this is the push to 

put a roundabout where the Route 17 & 90 light is, if this were to happen the state would be taking the 

majority of the apron space that we currently have at the station, which means that there would no longer 

be enough space to leave a truck outside of the building.  

 

As discussed at the last Select Board meeting, the board could wait to do a bond issue, and could hold a 

special open town meeting to approve a bond issue this winter. This would allow the board to see what is 

going to happen with the ambulance service and get better cost estimates for the West Rockport Fire 

Station, which are two very large unknowns at this point.  

 

Included with this memo is the original projects that the board was considering to put into the bond issue 

when going through the budget, the minutes from the May 22nd meeting of the Capital Improvement 

Committee, and the current timeline should the board want to continue with a November bond issue.  

 

Thank you, 

Megan Brackett 



Capital Improvement Committee Meeting 
 

Wednesday – May 22, 2019 

5:15 p.m. 
Richardson Room 

Town Office – 101 Main Street - Rockport 

 

 

MINUTES 

 

➢ Call meeting to order at 5:15 p.m. by Allen Mitchell 

➢ Attendance: Megan Brackett (Finance Director), Michael Young (Public Works 

Director), Steve Corson, Allen Mitchell, Jeff Hamilton, Rick Bates (Town 

Manager), Jeff Charland, Steve Dailey, Mark Kelley 

➢ Approval of Minutes 

o The minutes from 05/07/2019 meeting was motioned to be approved by 

Steve Dailey and seconded by Jeff Charland, all approved.  

➢ New Business 

o Steve Corson, Steve Dailey, Jeff Charland and Allen Mitchell went on a 

ride and provided a list of their recommendations and findings. (A copy of 

this has been included with the minutes). There was a lengthy 

conversation about how they came to their ratings and why. They also 

asked Mike Young several questions about individual roads along the 

way. 

o A semi-final recommendation list was created for submission to the Select 

Board: 

▪ Town Pier $162,000 

▪ Public Safety Building Paving $31,000 

▪ Town Office Building Paving $31,000 

▪ Harbor Paving $53,000 

▪ Public Works Exhaust System $30,000 

▪ Public Safety Building Exhaust System $30,000 

▪ Town Office Building Vault $15,000 

▪ Park Street (Meadow to Brandy Brook) $63,400 

▪ Park Street (White Tail to Route 90) $90,280 

▪ Old Rockland (Rockville to Route 17 East) $175,000 

▪ South Street (Rockville to Beech Hill) $101,180 

▪ Beech Hill to South Street $202,800 

▪ Gurney Street $102,035 

▪ Mill Street $199,215 



▪ Camden Street $96,953 

▪ TOTAL $1,382,863 

o The by-laws were discussed, they would like to see the definition of 

capital improvement in them and have a minimum funding limit of 

$25,000. 

➢ The meeting was adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 

Town of Rockport, Maine 
 

 

Finance Department 
Town Office Building 

101 Main Street 

Rockport, Maine 04856 

 

Telephone:  207.230.0180 x6 
 

 

Megan A. Brackett, Finance Director 
mbrackett@town.rockport.me.us 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fax:              207.706.4999 
 

 
Date:  April 1, 2019 

 

To:  Richard C. Bates. Town Manager 

 

CC:  Rockport Select Board 

  

RE: Timeline for Infrastructure Bond 

 

Below I have drafted a timeline of events in order to get an infrastructure bond issue on the November 

2019 ballot: 

 

April –  

 9th – the Capital Improvement Committee to meet and review the new CIP and the items outlined 

from the Select Board during the budget process, also give them a chance to add other items if 

they deem necessary. The CIP Committee to have preliminary recommendations drafted and to 

the Select Board for their first meeting in May. 

 

 Pathways Committee and Public Works Director to determine the sidewalks that would be added 

to the infrastructure bond, this would need to be completed by the end of April. 

 

 

May –  

 Public Works Director to work with the Town engineers, or others as deemed necessary to 

determine cost estimates for the sidewalks to be completed. These to be completed by the end of 

July. 

 

 13th – At the Select Board regular meeting review and discuss the recommendations from the CIP 

Committee. Send any recommendations or questions back to the CIP Committee through either 

the Select Board liaison or the Finance Director. 

 

 Public Works Director to identify any roads that may need to be added to the bond issue and have 

price estimates for these roads by the end of July. 

 

June –  

 The CIP Committee to meet again to review any direction from the Select Board and refine the 

list should they need to.  

 



 Public Works Director to continue working on getting cost estimates for sidewalk projects. 

 

July –  

 Public Works Director delivers all price estimates for sidewalks or roadways to the Finance 

Director by July 26th. 

 

 Town get the engineering done on the Walker Park Seawall project. 

 

 29th to August 6th – CIP Committee meets again to review any items the Public Works Director 

has identified and review the cost estimates for the Walker Park Seawall project and adjusts their 

recommendations to the Select Board as needed. 

 

August –  

 12th – At the regularly scheduled Select Board meeting the Select Board will review and discuss 

any further recommendation from the CIP Committee and develop a final list of projects to be 

completed. All cost estimates should be done by the point, and the Select Board should have a 

final bonding number.  

 

 13th – 19th – The Finance Director will work with bond counsel to get a warrant article drafted and 

ready for the Select Board approval to be placed on the November warrant by September 6th. 

 

September –  

 12th – All items related to this bond issue need to be completed because the warrant will have to 

go to the printers on or around September 13th. 

 

October –  

 4th – On or around this day absentee ballots will be available. 

 

November –  

 4th – Election Day  

 

  

  

 

 

Thank you, 

Megan Brackett 



 
 

 
 

 

 

Town of Rockport, Maine 
 

 

Finance Department 
Town Office Building 

101 Main Street 

Rockport, Maine 04856 

 

Telephone:  207.230.0180 x6 
 

 

Megan A. Brackett, Finance Director 
mbrackett@town.rockport.me.us 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fax:              207.706.4999 
 

 
Date:  April 1, 2019 

 

To:  Richard C. Bates. Town Manager 

 

CC:  Rockport Select Board 

  

RE: Capital Improvement Projects 

 

During the budget process the following projects were recognized as potential projects to be completed 

with a bond issue.  

 

1. Mt. Pleasant Street – estimated cost $390,000. 

2. Sidewalks – Public Works and Pathways to identify the ones to be completed $200,000. 

3. Walker Park Seawall – estimate to be determined once engineering has been accomplished, place 

holder of $400,000. 

4. Lime Kilns – price unknown currently, place holder of $325,000. 

5. Tennis Courts – estimated cost of $125,000. 

6. Columbarium at Sea View Cemetery – estimated cost $75,000 (some money currently in a 

reserve account). 

 

These projects will be forwarded to the Capital Improvement Committee for their review and give them a 

chance to weigh in on these projects or other projects they think should be done. 

 

 

Thank you, 

Megan Brackett 



 

   
 

New Business 

g. RES Committee Composition and Request for Qualifications 

Manager’s Comments: Discussion 

The current ad-hoc committee discussing the potential redevelopment of the former RES site is 

recommending a new committee be formed. While the ad-hoc committee has not recommended a 

name for the committee, I recommend naming it “RES Redevelopment Committee” so that its 

purpose is clear. This new committee would include the town manager, finance director and 

planner as ex-officio members, two Select Board members, a member of the Parks and 

Beautification Committee, a member of the Recreation Committee and three residents that have 

experience in finance, real estate and development. The ad-hoc committee has drafted a request 

for qualifications (RFQ) for the Board to consider.  

 

Suggested Motion:  

I move the Board approve the creation of the RES Redevelopment Committee with the 

recommended composition of members. 

 

I move the Board approve the Request for Qualifications as presented. 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

RES Redevelopment Committee 

 

Town Manager – Ex-Officio 

Finance Director – Ex-Officio 

Planner – Ex-Officio 

(2) Select Board Members 

(1) Parks and Beautification Committee Member 

(1) Recreation Committee Member 

(3) Citizens with Finance/Banking, Real Estate and/or Economic Development 

background 



 
 

 

 

Request for Qualifications 

Town of Rockport, Maine 

August 12, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

Table of Contents 

Statement of Purpose 

Community Background 

RES Parcel Description 

Principles of Development 

Project Vision 

Parcel Amenities and Incentives 

Zoning 

Parcel Ownership 

Respondent Qualifications 

Scope of Services Requested 

Evaluation Criteria 

Submission Requirements 

Submission and Deadline Criteria 

 

 



 
 

Town of Rockport 

Request for Qualifications 

For Development of Town-Owned Parcel 

Statement of Purpose 

The Town of Rockport, Maine is looking to partner with a developer in order to create a public-

private partnership while developing a prime piece of Town-owned real estate at the former 

Rockport Elementary School (RES) site. 

Community Background 

Rockport, Maine is a picturesque coastal community with a year-round population of 

approximately 3,200, in a county of 40,000 residents. The Town population increases 

significantly in the summer months when the “Snowbirds” return and tourists visit.  

The Village Center is located on historic Rockport Harbor and there are 4 surrounding 

“settlements” situated among wooded hills and open fields. Depending on a resident’s location, 

they will travel to either Rockland or Camden for most of their routine shopping.  

Our Village Center hosts the Town library, the Opera House, 2 restaurants, 1 coffee shop, the 

post office, 5 parks, and several galleries.   

The Harbor is home to a traditional wooden boat builder with a full-service marina, a lobster 

fleet, a boat club, a day sailing schooner, and The Marine Park, making it a focal point for both 

tourists and local residents.   

RES Parcel Description 

The site of the old Rockport Elementary School (RES) is a 7.67-acre parcel of cleared, level land 

located at the high-volume intersection of Routes 1 and 90, where Route 90 terminates. This 

intersection effectively funnels most thru traffic headed “Downeast” onto Route 1 North or 

straight ahead into the village center.  Route 1 is also the main corridor linking the towns of 

Camden, Rockport, and Rockland.  Due to this unique location, this intersection is effectively the 

gateway to Rockport for a large amount of both tourist and local traffic. The location is within 

easy walking distance of both the Harbor Marine Park and the Village Center. The Regional 

High School is ½ mile west on Route 90. The Town Office and Public Safety Buildings are 

located ¼ mile away.  The Route 1 and Route 90 corridors have many small businesses and light 

industries, as well as our regional hospital. The Town of Camden is 2 miles north on Route 1 and 

the City of Rockland’s center is 3 miles south on Route 1. 

The RES site currently consists of 2 entities: one is a ballfield used occasionally for baseball and 

soccer.  The other is a collection of concrete slabs which constituted the foundation for the old 

school that was torn down in 2012. The parcel has frontage on both Route 1 and West Street, 

which is the local extension to Route 90.  The parcel is served by Town sewer, water, and high-

speed internet.   



 
 

 

Principles of Development 

The successful proposal will incorporate the following 4 principles of development: 

1. The project must make a significant contribution to Rockport’s tax base. 

2. The project must be aesthetically pleasing and attractive as it welcomes both residents and 

tourists alike to the central portion of our Town, particularly if they are arriving by the important 

Route 90 corridor. 

3. “Green space” must be maintained, incorporated, and nurtured in the project so that it is 

accessible for all residents of Rockport to enjoy. 

4. The Town must be an active partner the development of the property so that decisions are not 

simply ones of “dollars and cents,” but that they take into account the shared values of all the 

citizens of the Town and their visions for it. 

Project Vision 

The Town residents have submitted suggestions and responded to questionnaires over the course 

of the past 10 years regarding their vision of the RES site. A working group of Town officials 

and guests has held several meetings in 2018-2019 to obtain updated information and input. The 

Town’s Select Board held a resident workshop in May 2019 to solicit updated ideas and 

proposals, including 4 break-out groups. 

There is striking similarity between past efforts and the present vision which have identified the 

most important element for the parcel to be one of community involvement and interactions.  

The recent 2018-2019 meetings have indicated that residents are interested in: 

• Green space/recreation area accessible for all age groups 

• Mixed use of commercial/residential housing/public spaces 

• A market space to support local farmers/artisans/craftspeople 

• Makerspace 

• Welcome center/information center 

• Eldercare/daycare/pet care 

• Walking paths and connections to existing trail systems 

• Performance/amphitheater area 

• Outdoor plaza/seating area 

Although open to design proposals, the Town envisions a minimum of 20% to be used for open 

green space and the remainder to be balanced between mixed-use retail/professional space and 

housing. 

 

 



 
 

Parcel Amenities and Incentives 

• 7.67 acres 

• 3 phase power 

• Sewer 

• High speed internet (1 gigabit, symmetrical, per second) 

• Access to Town planning and design assistance 

• Timely permitting process 

• Located in a TIF district 

• Assistance with grant writing and submission 

• Opportunities to designate site as an overlay district 

Zoning 

The property is zoned to allow residential, commercial and recreation. The parcel is zoned in the 

906 Modified Mixed Business/Residential zoning district. The objective of the Modified Mixed 

Business/Residential District is to encourage commercial growth and residential uses that creates 

a village atmosphere. The village setting should encourage pedestrian traffic while slowing 

vehicular traffic.  

Permitted uses and special exceptions for this zoning district are referenced in the Land Use 

Table in section 917 of the Land Use Ordinance.  

Dimensional standards for this zoning district are referenced in the tables in Section 918 of the 

Land Use Ordinance.  

Parcel Ownership 

It is the intent of the Town of Rockport to transfer all or some of the parcel to the developer upon 

acceptance of the design proposal. 

Respondent Qualifications 

Serious respondents should submit documentation of qualifications of personnel who will be 

working on the project in the roles listed in the Scope of Services section.  The selected 

respondent will possess the skills needed to fulfill the Scope of Services. 

The following information must also be included: 

- List of team members and contact information 

- Identification of all team member roles and project leads 

- List of completed similar projects 

- Evidence of required licenses, and professional qualifications as applicable 

- Demonstrate proof of financial capability to complete the project 

 

 



 
 

Scope of Services Requested 

- Public engagement and facilitation 

- Market analysis 

- Economic development 

- Civil engineering 

- Architecture 

Evaluation Criteria 

Proposals will be reviewed and evaluated by the RES Evaluation Committee and a 

recommendation will be made to the Select Board. 

Criteria with which the development Team will be evaluated include, but are not limited to: 

- Participant’s Credentials 

- History of timely completion of projects 

- Proven ability to work effectively with the community and public agencies 

- Creativity and vision for the RES site 

- Aesthetic vision as determined by previous projects 

- Responsiveness to the Town’s goals and design guidelines 

- Financial capacity to complete the project 

- Ability to manage and maintain the project 

- Completeness and quality of submission 

Submission Requirements 

Please submit 7 bound paper copies as well as 7 electronic versions on external thumb drives to:  

Town of Rockport 

Attn: Planner Bill Najpauer 

101 Main Street 

Rockport, Maine 04856 

Email: bnajpauer@rockportmaine.gov 

Submission and Deadline Criteria 

The deadline for submission is 5:00 p.m. on Monday, September 16, 2019. Questions concerning 

this submission should be directed to: 

Town of Rockport 

Attn: Town Manager Bill Post 

101 Main Street 

Rockport, ME 04856 



 
 

Telephone: (207) 236-9596 

Email: wpost@rockportmaine.gov 


	Agenda
	I. Call Meeting to Order
	II. Public Hearing
	a. None this meeting

	III. Minutes, Meetings and Announcements
	a. Approval of the minutes of previous meetings
	Monday, July 8, 2019
	Monday, July 22, 2019

	b. Announcements of upcoming Select Board meeting
	c. Announcements of upcoming Select Board Workshop
	d. Announcement(s) and/or Training
	e. Committee Openings
	f. Agenda Changes
	g. Public Comment

	V. Town Manager’s Report/Update
	August 7, 2019
	I/I Basement Studies

	VI. Consent Agenda
	Manager’s Comments
	Suggested Motion
	a. Resignation Allen Mitchell, ZBA
	Allen Mitchell

	b. Resignation James Sady
	Jim Sady

	c. Approval of Scott Bickford as the Health Officer
	d. Accept Donation from Ken McKinley
	Ken McKinley

	e. Resignation Richard Remsen,
	Richard Remsen


	VII. Unfinished Business
	a. None this meeting

	VIII. New Business
	a. Committee Application
	Manager’s Comments
	Suggested Motions
	COMMITTEES/BOARDS List
	Anna Remsen
	Sally Cook
	Nicholas Ruffin
	Mark Van Baalen
	Theodore Skowronski
	Sue Kauck
	Lea Anne Dunton
	Cheryl Liechty

	b. Rockport Parks and Beautification Bylaws
	Manager’s Comments
	Suggested Motion
	Bylaws

	c. Discuss Memorandum of Understanding for Masonic Hall
	Manager’s Comments
	Suggested Motion
	Memorandum of Understanding

	d. Approve Maine Municipal Association Voting Ballot
	Manager’s Comments
	Suggested Motion
	MMA Ballot

	e. Update on EMS and Possible Next Steps
	Manager’s Comments
	Suggested Motion

	f. Update on Capital Improvement Projects and Potential Bond
	Manager’s Comments
	Suggested Motion:
	Project List from CIP Committee
	Capital Improvement Committee Meeting
	Timeline for Infrastructure Bond
	Capital Improvement Projects

	g. Discuss RES Committee Composition and Request for Qualifications
	Manager’s Comments
	Suggested Motion
	RES Redevelopment Committee
	RFQ

	IX. Wastewater Commissioners
	a. None this meeting

	X. Liaison Reports
	XI. Executive Session
	a. Discussion of contracts

	XII. Adjournment

	Name: Cheryl Liechty
	Home Address: 3 Spruce Street, Rockport, ME 04856
	Work Address: 4 Glen Cove Drive, Ste 201, Rockport, ME, 04856
	Mailing Address if different: 
	Phone Number  Home: 207-2304364 (cell)
	Work: 207-301-5678
	Email Address: cherylliechty@gmail.com
	Committee you wish to serve on: Pesticide Advisory Board
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 1: I was asked by Doug Cole to participate as a physician representative to this board and accepted.
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 2: 
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 3: 
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 4: 
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 5: 
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 1: I am a practicing physician in Rockport.  I also hold a masters degree in public health,
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 2: specifically epidemiology and biostatistics, which may be helpful in evaluating the 
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 3: benefits versus potential harms of pest control options in our community.
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 4: I also approach this issue as a parent of children who use Rockport greenspace
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 5: extensively.
	Land Use philosophy if applicable 1: Not land use per se, but I would like to see prudent use of pest control measures for good stewardship of public land, 
	Land Use philosophy if applicable 2: with an evidence-based approach to considering benefits and harms of various interventions.
	Land Use philosophy if applicable 3: 
	Land Use philosophy if applicable 4: 
	Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished 1: I hope the board will be able to review evidence and utilize expert input to make 
	Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished 2: evidence-based recommendations around pesticide use in Rockport.
	Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished 3: 
	Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished 4: 
	Are you interested in serving on other committees 1: 
	Are you interested in serving on other committees 2: 
	Interview comments 1: 
	Interview comments 2: 
	Interview comments 3: 
	Interview comments 4: 
	Interview comments 5: 
	Town of Rockport Use Only: 


